
1 
 

                                                   MINUTES 
                           General Government Committee 

                           County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                10:00 a.m. Thursday, October 11, 2018 
 

Meeting called to order by Chair Masters @ 10:09 a.m. 
Members present: 
 
Attendee Name Title Status 

Brian Masters Chair Present 
Russ Arcand Vice Chair Present 

Dean Johansen Supervisor Present 

Larry Jepsen Supervisor Present 
Chris Nelson Supervisor Present 

   
Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator/Corporation 
Counsel; Malia Malone, Assistant Corporation Counsel; Andrea Jerrick, Deputy County Administrator; 
Maggie Wickre, Finance Director; Vince Netherland, Economic Corporation Director; Debbie Peterson, 
Director of Parks and Buildings; Supervisor Michael Prichard, members of the public and member of the 
press.   
                                                                       
Approval of Agenda  
Chair Masters declared order of some items on agenda would be considered in a different order. Interim 
Administrator addressed item on agenda “Review Suicide Hotline Fees” with recommendation that the 
agenda item may belong in another committee for consideration.  Chair Masters noted the item was on 
the agenda for informational purposes only.  
Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the agenda as published and with said change in agenda 
order. Motion (Nelson/Johansen) to approve agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
  
Approval of Minutes  -Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the minutes of the September 6, 
2018 meeting as published. Motion (Jepsen/Arcand) to approve the minutes. Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment  -No Public comment was received by committee. 

Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members - Supervisor Prichard 
spoke to the Committee regarding items on the agenda.   

Committee received information from Sheriff Pete Johnson regarding the disclosure of purchases of 
goods or services from County employees as required by the Purchasing Policy 5.07. Sheriff Department 
purchases from businesses partially owned by sheriff department employees included: firearm 
supplies/accessories from F Bomb Ordinance, vehicle striping/decals from Mike Ottosen and light 
vehicle maintenance from DJ Automotive. Purchases were under $3,000 to each business. 
 
Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding the DD Kennedy Dam 
embankment repair project and transfer of contingency funds. The cost to repair the dam is estimated 
at $68,000 to $70,000.Committee received information from Administrator Fuge regarding a 
recommendation of transfer from contingency fund.  

  



2 
 

Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to refer DD Kennedy Dam embankment repair project and transfer of 
contingency funds back to Environmental Services Committee for information, consideration and 
recommendation. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to refer DD Kennedy 
Dam embankment repair project and transfer of contingency funds back to Environmental Services 
Committee carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Reports and Presentations 

Committee received information from Economic Development Corporation Director Vince Netherland 
regarding the Housing Study Proposal.   

Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding the offer from 
Northwestern Wisconsin Electric to transfer Clam Falls Dam to the County.     

Committee reviewed Suicide Hotline Fees. Committee received information from Supervisor Masters, 
Interim Administrator Fuge and Assistant Corporation Counsel Malone regarding contracted fees for 
suicide hotline.  

Committee received 2017 financial statement from Polk County Tourism and 2018 Budget from Interim 
Administrator Fuge for review and consideration of requests for additional funding. 

 Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to table decisions on tourism information until a representative from tourism 
is available to present information to the committee regarding funding requests. Chair Masters called 
for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to table decisions on tourism information and funding requests 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Committee received information from Supervisor Prichard and a presentation from Rosalie Kittleson 
from the St Croix Falls Historical Society regarding the proposal for lease of the Little Red Schoolhouse 
on the Polk County Fairgrounds by the St Croix Falls Historical Society. 

Committee received information form Interim Administrator Fuge regarding the payments to Polk 
County Libraries under Act 150. Committee received information from Supervisor Prichard regarding the 
Federated Library System. Committee received an Act 150 hand-out and presentation from John 
Thompson, Director of the Indianhead Federated Library System. Libraries are requesting 100% funding 
from County, which may be presented in a future resolution to the County Board. 

Recommendation on Proposed Resolutions 

Recommendation on proposed Resolution No. 77-18: Resolution Concerning Offer of Northwestern 
Electric Company to Transfer Clam Falls Dam. Committee received information from Administrator Fuge 
regarding resolution.  

Motion (Nelson/Masters) to approve and recommend Resolution No. 77-18 as written to the County 
Board rejecting the offer proposed by Northwestern Wisconsin Electric Company. Chair Masters called 
for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to recommend Resolution No. 77-18 to the County Board 



3 
 

rejecting the offer proposed by Northwestern Wisconsin Electric Company carried by majority voice vote 
with one opposed.  

Recommendation on proposed Ordinance No. 79-18: Ordinance Repealing Designation and Service 
Contract for Humane Society and Revising Limits on Claims Made Against Dog License Fund.  Committee 
received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding the proposed ordinance and advised 
the committee that the Environmental Services Committee deferred action on the Ordinance at the 
October 10, 2018 meeting to obtain more information. Ordinance No. 79-18 will be referred back to 
Environmental Services Committee.  

Recommendation on proposed Resolution No. 80-18: Resolution Concerning the Reorganization and 
Consolidation of County Departments.  Motion (Nelson/Arcand) to approve Resolution No. 80-18 and 
recommend for passage to County Board. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion.  Motion 
to approve Resolution No. 80-18 and recommend for passage to the County Board carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 

Chair Masters called for a recess at 11:17 a.m. Chair Masters called the meeting back in session at 11:22 
a.m.  

Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding recommendations on the 
proposed 2019 Operating and Capital Improvements Budget, Assigned Functions; Staffing Levels and 
Overall Budget Proposal. Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding 
various departmental additional funding requests. 

Additional funding requests for Department of Buildings, Parks, Solid Waste, Forestry, Museum and Fair:   
$20,000 for increased water and sewer charges, $150,000 chiller replacement, $80,000 for recycling 
truck, $25,000 for dump truck. 

Motion (Nelson/Johansen) to support the recommendation of the Environmental Services Committee to 
deny additional funding requests of $80,000 and $25,000 for trucks for Buildings/Parks and to remove 
those items from the budget. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  

Additional funding request for Treasurer: $5,000 funds for scanning and saving old tax rolls 

Recommendation regarding additional funding request of $5,000 for Treasurer. Motion 
(Nelson/Masters) to remove $5,000 adding funding request for Treasurer for scanning of old tax rolls. 
Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion defeated by majority voice vote.  

Additional funding requests for Tourism: $10,000 for creation of Discover Wisconsin video and $6,000 
for utility costs and sign replacement. 

Additional funding request for Polk County Economic Development Corporation $10,000 for County 
Wide Housing study 

Additional funding request for Child Support Agency:  .5 FTE position – net cost $11,900 



4 
 

 

Additional funding request for Department of Administration: $35,000 facility Study 

Committee received information from Supervisor Nelson regarding costs involved in recording and 
playback or broadcasting of County Board meetings.  

Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to amend the budget to add $5,000 to Department of Information Technology 
Budget to enable recording of County Board Meeting. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said 
motion. Motion to amend the budget to add $5,000 for recording of County Board meetings to 
Department of Information Technology budget carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Motion (Jepsen/Arcand) to send 2019 budget recommendation to County Board for approval. Chair 
Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Committee received information regarding technical amendments to the Budget Ceiling from Finance 
Director Wickre.  

Recommended Technical Amendments include: 

Department of Administration Technical Amendments:  

• Technical Amendment #1 -Strike ($440,014) and replace with ($550,476) for adjustment in levy 
due to change in Personal Property Tax Act, 

• Technical Amendment #2 - Strike $466,120 in Other Taxes and replace with $556,575 as an 
adjustment due to change in Personal Property Tax Act, 

• Technical Amendment #3 -Strike $603,943 in State Aids and replace with $602,656 as an 
adjustment for Shared Revenue and Exempt Computer Funding 

• Technical Amendment #4 -Strike $14,902 in Supplies/Expenses and replace with $13,615 as an 
adjustment for reduction in State Aid 

• Technical Amendment #5 -Strike $395,884 and replace with $330,000 due to adjustment to 
budgeted expenses in Contingency Fund. These expenses are no longer expected to be used. 

Department of Buildings, Parks, Solid Waste, Forestry, Museum Technical Amendment 

• Technical Amendment #6 – Use of Lakes Improvement Fund Balance – Increase capital in Lakes 
Improvement Fund to cover Kennedy Parking Lot and replace concrete boat landing $30,000 

Community Services Division Technical Amendment:  

• Technical Amendment #7 – Correcting transfer in from Driver’s Improvement Fund – Strike 
$30,000 in Other Financing Sources and replace with $30,600. Strike $3,299,220 in Other 
Professional Services and replace with $3,299,820.  

Department of Public Health Technical Amendment: 



5 
 

• Technical Amendment #8 – Was supposed to be staffing and eliminate independent contractor 
to be replaced with staff. 

Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) to approve technical amendments as presented for Department of 
Administration, Department of Buildings, Parks, Solid Waste, Forestry, and Museum, Community 
Services Division, Department of Public Health and move to County Board for approval.  Chair Masters 
called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Committee received information regarding Capital Improvement Plan Summary from Finance Director 
Wickre. Motion (Johansen/Masters) to accept Capital Improvement Plan Summary as presented. Chair 
Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Supervisor Jepsen was excused from the meeting at 12:08 p.m. 

Recommendation on proposed Resolution No. 78-18: Resolution to Hold a Public Hearing on the 2019 
Budget Proposal.  Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding 
resolution. Motion (Nelson/Masters) to approve Resolution No. 78-18 and recommend passage to 
County Board with those changes as recommended by the General Government Committee. Chair 
Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to approve Resolution No. 78-18 and 
recommend for passage to the County Board carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Review and Revise Committee Work Plan: 
 
Next agenda:   

Resolution No 68-18: Resolution to Lease “Little Red Schoolhouse” on County Fairgrounds to the St Croix 
Falls Historical Society 

2019 Budget amendments 
 
Next meeting:  November 8, 2018 @ 10:00 a.m.  
 
Adjourn 
 
Motion (Nelson/Johansen) to adjourn. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Meeting adjourned 12:14 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sharon Jorgenson 
County Clerk  
 

















































































































































































































































PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 

*AMENDED* AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Thursday, October 11, 2018, at 10:00 a.m.  
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

1Amendments Added or Revised in Amended Notice Issued October 8, 2018 
 

 

Materials: September 6, 2018 Minutes, Proposed Resolutions 
 
1. Call to order –Chairman Masters 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of Minutes for September 6, 2018 
4. Public Comment (3 minutes) 
5. Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members  
6. 1Notice of potential purchase of goods and/or services from a County employee (as 

required by purchasing policy) 
7. Recommendations on the Proposed 2019 Operating and Capital Improvements Budget, 

Assigned Functions; Staffing Levels and Overall Budget Proposal 
8. DD Kennedy Dam Embankment Repair Project and Transfer of Contingency Funds  
9. Reports and Presentations 

a. Housing Study Proposal – Vince Netherland 
b. Information/Update Regarding Clam Falls Dam Offer from Northwestern Wisconsin 

Electric  
c. Review Suicide Hotline Fees  
d. Review Tourism Financials and Requests for Additional Funding 
e. St. Croix Falls Historical Society Presentation Regarding Lease of Little Red 

Schoolhouse on County Fairgrounds  
f. Payments to Polk County Libraries Under Act 150 

10. Recommendation on Proposed Resolutions 
a. Resolution No. 77-18:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Northwestern Wisconsin 

Electric Company  to Transfer Clam Falls Dam 
b. Resolution No. 78-18:  Resolution to Hold a Public Hearing on the 2019  Budget 

Proposal 
c. Ordinance No. 79-18: Ordinance Repealing Designation and Service Contract for 

Humane Society and Revising Limits on Claims Made Against Dog License Fund 
d. Resolution No. 80-18: Resolution Concerning the Reorganization and Consolidation of 

County Departments 
11. Review and Revise 2018 Committee Work Plan 
12. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
13. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to 
attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 hours in advance of 
the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 
 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 

 
AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

County Board Room 
Thursday, October 11, 2018, at 10:00 a.m.  
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Materials: September 6, 2018 Minutes, Proposed Resolutions 
 
1. Call to order –Chairman Masters 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of Minutes for September 6, 2018 
4. Public Comment (3 minutes) 
5. Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members  
6. Recommendations on the Proposed 2019 Operating and Capital Improvements 

Budget, Assigned Functions; Staffing Levels and Overall Budget Proposal 
7. DD Kennedy Dam Embankment Repair Project and Transfer of Contingency 

Funds  
8. Reports and Presentations 

a. Housing Study Proposal – Vince Netherland 
b. Information/Update Regarding Clam Falls Dam Offer from 

Northwestern Wisconsin Electric  
c. Review Suicide Hotline Fees  
d. Review Tourism Financials and Requests for Additional Funding 
e. St. Croix Falls Historical Society Presentation Regarding Lease of Little 

Red Schoolhouse on County Fairgrounds  
f. Payments to Polk County Libraries Under Act 150 

9. Recommendation on Proposed Resolutions 
a. Resolution No. 77-18:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Northwestern 

Wisconsin Electric Company  to Transfer Clam Falls Dam 
b. Resolution No. 78-18:  Resolution to Hold a Public Hearing on the 2019  

Budget Proposal 
c. Ordinance No. 79-18: Ordinance Repealing Designation and Service 

Contract for Humane Society and Revising Limits on Claims Made 
Against Dog License Fund 

d. Resolution No. 80-18: Resolution Concerning the Reorganization and 
Consolidation of County Departments 

10. Review and Revise 2018 Committee Work Plan 
11. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
12. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at 
least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be 
made. Requests are confidential. 
    

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


1 
 

                                                   MINUTES 
                           General Government Committee 

                           County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                10:00 a.m. Thursday, September 6, 2018 
 

Meeting called to order by Vice Chair Arcand @ 10:02 a.m. 
Members present: 
 
Attendee Name Title Status 

Brian Masters Chair Absent 
Russ Arcand Vice Chair Present 

Dean Johansen Supervisor Present 

Larry Jepsen Supervisor Present 
Chris Nelson Supervisor Present 

   
Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; and Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator/Corporation 
Counsel.   
                                                                       
Approval of Agenda- Vice Chair Arcand called for a motion to approve the agenda as published. Motion 
(Jepsen/Johansen) to approve agenda as published. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
  
Approval of Minutes- Vice Chair Arcand called for a motion to approve the minutes of the August 16, 
2018 meeting as published. Motion (Jepsen/Johansen) to approve the minutes. Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment – No Public comment was received by committee. 

Reports and Presentations 

Committee received printed financial information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding the Solid 
Waste/Recycling Center. Committee held discussion. Interim Administrator Fuge recommended that the 
committee conduct a program review Solid Waste/Recycling Center. Supervisor Jepsen suggested 
committee tour the recycling center.  Interim Administrator Fuge will set up a future meeting possibly 
on a Friday to include Ms. Peterson (Director of Parks & Buildings) and set up a tour of the recycling 
center. 

Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding legal expenses incurred 
from use of outside counsel concerning ordinance revisions and Board of Adjustment cases.  Since 
March of 2018, the County has incurred approximately $10,000 expense for outside legal counsel 
expenses. Currently the County budget does not have a line item or budget allowance providing for legal 
expenses for the Board of Adjustment legal costs. 

Recommendation on Northwestern Wisconsin Electric Offer to Donate Clam Falls Dam 
Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding an offer from Northwestern 
Wisconsin Electric to donate Clam Falls Dam to the County.     

  



2 
 

Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to recommend to the County Board to reject the offer currently proposed by 
Northwestern Wisconsin Electric but continue a discussion with Northwestern Wisconsin Electric and 
the Town of Clam Falls regarding the future of the Clam Falls Dam. Vice Chair Arcand called for a voice 
vote on said motion. Motion to recommend to the County Board to reject the offer currently proposed 
by Northwestern Wisconsin Electric but continue a discussion with Northwestern Wisconsin Electric and 
the Town of Clam Falls regarding the future of the Clam Falls Dam carried by majority voice vote with 
one opposed.  

Interim Administrator Fuge will contact Clam Falls Town Board Chair regarding Clam Falls Dam 
information.  

Committee received information regarding the budget process and timeline of budget process from 
Interim Administrator Fuge. 
 
Next agenda: 

Information Technology Presentation 

Further information regarding Clam Falls Dam & Northwestern Wisconsin Electric   

Resolution No 68-18: Resolution to Lease “Little Red Schoolhouse” on County Fairgrounds to the St Croix 
Falls Historical Society 

Solid Waste/Recycling Center program review/tour of center 

Consideration of 2019 Budget  
 
Next meeting:  October  11, 2018 @ 10:00 a.m.  
 
Adjourn 
 
Motion (Johansen/Nelson) to adjourn. Vice Chair Arcand called for a voice vote on the motion to 
adjourn. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Meeting adjourned 10:50 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sharon Jorgenson 
County Clerk  
 

 



















































1 
 

Subject Matter Summary 
 
Subject Matter Description:  
 
Ordinance Repealing Designation and Service Contract for Humane Society and Revising Limits on 
Claims Made Against Dog License Fund  
 
Legislative Process: 
 
The proposed ordinance is placed before the General Government Committee and the Environmental 
Services Committee for recommendation.  The proposed ordinance will be noticed for the October 
16, 2018 County Board meeting.  
 
Summary: 
 
The proposed ordinance seeks to repeal the previous ordinance, Ordinance No. 05-15, which 
designated Arnell Memorial Humane Society as the county humane society and authorized a provider 
contract with Arnell.  The contract has a four year term, expiring on December 31, 2018.   The 
proposed ordinance would cause the contract to lapse rather than renew the contract.   The proposed 
ordinance leaves in place the monetary limitations previously set for claims for damages cause by 
dogs and the annual cap for such claims.   
 
Initially designated as the County’s humane society in 1996, Arnell has been utilized for the care, 
custody, treatment and disposal of stray dogs within the County.  In 2013, the County made the 
administrative decision to allocate the dog license moneys to Arnell, after receiving a legal opinion 
from Corporation Counsel. The legal opinion concluded that because the County had designated a 
county humane society, the balance of the dog license fund must be paid to the county humane 
society as a matter of statutory mandate.  Under the mandate, the County lacked authority to pay any 
of the dog license fund moneys to the cities, villages and towns.   
 
If enacted, the proposed ordinance would require the County to pay the moneys of the dog license 
fund to the cities, village and towns after paying the state its 5 percent of dog license fees collected; 
paying dog claims that have been allowed by the County Board; and reimbursing the County for the 
costs associated with administering the dog license law.  
 
Administrator’s Recommendation and Fiscal Impact Note:   
 
The Administrator has not provided a recommendation on the proposed ordinance.    The proposed 
ordinance alters the manner in which the county administers the County dog license fund by 
transferring the disbursement of such moneys from the county designated humane society to cities, 
villages and towns.  Allowed claims against the dog license fund will continue to be paid out of 
moneys in the dog license fund.  Otherwise, the ordinance presents no financial impact to county 
operation.  
 
Legal Impact Note:  
 
Enactment of the proposed ordinance cancels the county’s designation of a humane society and ends 
the contractual relationship that the County has with the Arnell Memorial Humane Society.   The 
County Board has the discretion to enact this ordinance and end that contractual relationship.    Dog 



2 
 

licenses fees collected during the year of 2018 will be paid to Arnell Memorial Humane Society in 
January 2019 consistent with the terms of the current service agreement.    




















	Gen Government Agenda 10-11-2018
	Gen Gov Minutes 9-6-18
	Gen Gov Tourism BUDGET, BOARD APPROVAL EXPENSES, STATEMENTS 2017, 2018
	Res 68-18 attachment
	Res 68-18 Schoolhouse attachmt
	Res 68-18 Lease of Little Red Schoolhouse
	Gen Gov Tourism 2019 Budget requests
	Res 77-18 attachmt Clam Falls Dam offer
	Ord 79-18 -Staff Report Ordinance - Repeal Humane Society Designation
	Ord 79-18 Repeal Contract for Humane Soc
	Res 80-18 Reorganization & Consolidation of County Depts
	Workplan Gen Gov 2018

